SAN BENITO COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Margie Barrios Anthony Botelho Robert Rivas Jerry Muenzer Jaime De La Cruz
District No. 1 District No. 2 District No. 3 District No. 4 District No. 5
Vice-Chair Chair

County Administration Building — Board of Supervisors Chambers, 481 Fourth Street, Hollister, California

REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 19, 2012
ACTION MINUTES

The Board of Supervisors of San Benito County met in the Board Chambers on the
above date in regular session. Supervisors Botelho, Rivas, Muenzer, Barrios and De La Cruz
were present. Also present were County Administrative Officer Rich Inman, County Counsel
Matt Granger and Clerk of the Board Denise Thome. Chair De La Cruz presided.

| 9:00 a.m. CALL TO ORDER:

a) Supervisor Barrios led the Pledge of Allegiance.

b) Upon motion duly made, seconded and carried, acknowledged Certificate of
Posting.

C) PRESENTATIONS & RECOGNITIONS:

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:
Introduction of Kellie Mancino, Miss San Benito Rodeo 2012, who is
representing the San Benito County Saddle Horse Association in the 2012
Saddle Horse Show and Rodeo Downtown Parade and the Saddle Horse
Show and Rodeo to be held June 22-24 at Bolado Park.

Grace Tobias, 2011 Miss San Benito Rodeo introduced Kellie Mancino, Miss
San Benito Rodeo 2012. File #55

HUMAN RESOURCES:
Certificate of recognition to the following employees for years of County
Service upon retirement:
e Mary Edrington-Office Service Supervisor (Probation Department), 13
years
Martha Gibson-Office Assistant (Probation Department), over 22 years
Nancy Leon-Legal Secretary (District Attorney’s Office), over 35 years
Martha Ruiz-Staff Services analyst (First Five), almost 26 years
Dianna Smith-Deputy Clerk Recorder (County Clerk/Recorder/Elections),
over 12 years
e Gifford Swanson-Public Authority Manager (In-Home Supportive
Services), almost 9 years
Supervisor Rivas presented Mary Edrington a certificate of recognition for 13
years of service.
Supervisor Botelho presented Martha Gibson a certificate of recognition for

Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



over 22 years of service.

Supervisor Barrios presented Nancy Leon a certificate of recognition for over
35 years of service.

Supervisor Barrios presented Martha Ruiz a certificate of recognition for
almost 26 years of service.

Chairman De La Cruz presented Dianna Smith a certificate of recognition for
over 12 years of service.

Supervisor Muenzer presented Gifford Swanson a certificate of recognition for
almost 9 years of service. File #55

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION:
Proclaim Parks and Recreation Month in San Benito County.

Supervisor Muenzer presented the proclamation proclaiming the month of
July as Parks and Recreation Month to Jim West of the Parks and Recreation
Commission. File #93

County Counsel Granger stated that items 2 and 3 had been withdrawn.
The Board adjourned into Closed Session at 9:16 a.m. and reconvened at
9:37 a.m.

| CLOSED SESSION:

1)

2)

Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation.

(Subdivision (a) of Section 54956.9)

Name of Case: Purple Cross Rx, et. al. v. County of San Benito, Superior
Court, County of San Benito, Case No. CU-12-00060

County Counsel Matt Granger stated that there was no reportable action. File
#235.6

Conference with Labor Negotiator:

Authority: California Government Code Section 54957.6

Agency Designated Chief Negotiator: Linzie Daniel, Jodan and Associates
and Jacki Credico, Management Analyst

Employee Organization: Deputy Sheriff's Association, SEIU Local 521,
Management Employees Group

This item was withdrawn.

| SITTING AS THE PUBLIC AUTHORITY FOR IN HOME SUPPORTIVE SERVICES:

3)

d)

Minutes

Conference with Labor Negotiator:

Authority: California Government Code Section 54957.6

Agency Designated Chief Negotiator: Gifford Swanson, Public Authority
Manager and Jacki Credico, Management Analyst

Employee Organization: SEIU Local ULTCW (In-Home Supportive Services)
This item was withdrawn.

Public Comment: Marty Richman wanted to remind everyone that it was Flag
Day. He expressed Happy Flag Day and Happy Birthday to the U.S. Army.

Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



e) Department Head Announcements:

County Administrative Officer Rich Inman spoke of State budget issues and
how the budget invalidated agreements that would have guaranteed the County
would receive 1.4 million. He explained that the State had taken that money to
balance their budget. He added that the Governor could veto the matter. He
stated that he would alert the Board with any news.

Public Works Administrator Steve Wittry spoke of a road closure in Aromas
for a few days for repairs.

Supervisor Barrios thanked CAO Inman for sending a letter regarding the 1.4
million agreement and felt the Board members should send individual letters as
well.

f) Board Announcements, Introductions and Presentations:
Supervisor Muenzer reported on his trip to Washington to testify in front of the
National Parks Sub Committee in effort to establish the Pinnacles as a national
park.

| CONSENT AGENDA:

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Botelho and seconded by Supervisor
Muenzer approved Consent Agenda items with the exception of items 5, 22, 23,
30, 31, 34 and 36 which were pulled for discussion. (Unanimous)

AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER — R. Ross:

4) Approved contract with the Department of Food & Agriculture to provide
Enforcement of the Organic Food Act for a total of $8,595 for the period of July 1,
2012 through June 30, 2013. File #1.1

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT — A. Yamamoto:
5) Approve contract renewal with Gary Ernst, Administrative/Fiscal
Consultant for FY 2012/13, for a maximum annual total of $95,000.

Item was pulled for discussion.

SEIU Local 521 representative Henry Soria stated that their members could
provide services for a much lower cost. He added that Sheila Eiserer, county
employee who was scheduled to be bumped, could provide these services for
$52,000 a year as opposed to the contract for $95,000 a year. He added that the
contractor’s daughter takes the information and manipulates it. Mr. Soria felt this
was an example of where the County could save money and employees. He
requested that they pull the item from the agenda and keep it in house.

There being no further public comment, the Chair closed the public comment
section.

Supervisor Muenzer asked Behavioral Health Director Alan Yamamoto why
they needed the contract.

Mr. Yamamoto replied that the employee was not being laid off but there was
a bumping procedure for Miss Eiserer. He added that Miss Eiserer did not do the
same job function that this job does. He explained that the individual in the
contract has the expertise to provide this, adding that they could not get this level
of expertise at this price. He cautioned the Board that it would not be wise to
dismantle a situation that is working well. Mr. Yamamoto indicated that their
department was one of the most fiscally responsible departments and their track
record spoke for itself.

Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



Supervisor Muenzer stated that the Audit Committee had concerns with
several large contracts, noting that this was not one of them.

Supervisor Barrios stated that when she was first on the Board this contract
was a concern of one of her constituents but after research it was realized that it
was a wise choice. She expressed that she felt comfortable moving forward.

Supervisor Botelho stated that he had also served on the Audit Committee
and Mr. Yamamoto’s Department was not one they were worried about. He felt
strongly that they should move forward on this. He added that if something went
wrong the General Fund would be affected.

Supervisor Rivas felt they needed to move forward with the contract. He
encouraged employees to find new ways, but the day of the contract being
approved was too late. He expressed that he had no problem moving forward
with this contract.

Chairman De La Cruz felt they should explore bringing in house.

Mr. Yamamoto felt that fair concerns had been raised. He stated that he was
very aware of the finiteness of everyone’s career including him.

Approved contract renewal with Gary Ernst, Administrative/Fiscal Consultant
for FY 2012/13, for a maximum annual total of $95,000. (Unanimous) File #810

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT — A. Yamamoto:
6) Approved contract renewal with Connecting Principles, facilitation of domestic

violence diversion groups for FY 2012-2013, for a maximum total of $25,000. File
#810

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT — A. Yamamoto:
7) Approved contract renewal with IDEA Consulting for FY 2012-13, for a
maximum annual total of $122,000. File #810

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT — A. Yamamoto:
8) Approved contract renewal with Hope Rehabilitation Services for the FY 2012-
13, for a maximum annual total of $25,000. File #810

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT — A. Yamamoto:
9) Approved contract renewal with Remi Vista, Inc. for therapeutic behavioral
services for the FY 2012-13, for a maximum amount of $70,000. File #810

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT — A. Yamamoto:
10) Approved contract renewal with Rebekah Children’s Services for therapeutic
behavioral services for FY 2012-13, for a maximum amount of $40,000. File #810

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT — A. Yamamoto:
11) Approved contract renewal with Natividad Medical Center for acute hospital

psychiatric services for the FY 2012-13, for a maximum annual total of $250,000.
File #810

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT — A. Yamamoto:
12) Approved contract renewal with Project Ninety, Inc., substance abuse residential

treatment facility for the FY 2012-13, for a maximum total not to exceed $70,000.
File #810

Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT — A. Yamamoto:
13) Approved contract renewal with Door to Hope Substance Abuse Residential
Treatment Facility for the FY 2012-13, for a maximum total of $70,000. File #810

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT — A. Yamamoto:
14) Approved contract renewal with Charis Youth Center, Inc. for therapeutic

behavioral services for the FY 2012-13, for a maximum amount of $80,000. File
#810

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT — A. Yamamoto:

15) Approved contract renewal with Santa Cruz Counseling Center, Inc., substance
abuse residential treatment facility for the FY 2012-13, for a maximum total of
$70,000. File #810

CLERK OF THE BOARD — D. Thome:
16) Approved the action minutes of the May 29, 2012 regular meeting.

COUNTY COUNSEL’S OFFICE — M. Granger:
17) Adopted Ordinance No. 896 adding Article Il (*Youth Protection”) to Chapter
9.01 (“Offenses-Miscellaneous”) and amending Sections 9.01.008 through

9.01.010 of Chapter 9.01 of Title 9 (“Offenses”) of the San Benito County Code.
File #160

COUNTY COUNSEL’S OFFICE — M. Granger:

18) Approved Amendment No. 1 to Legal Services Agreement with Cota Cole LLP.,
to cover additional legal expenses in responding Petition for Writ of Mandate on
Purple Cross Rx in the amount of $24,000 and extending the term of contract to
January 1, 2013. File #160

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY — M. Corona:

19) Reviewed, approved and authorized the Interim Director of HHSA to sign
contract with the Regents of the University of California on behalf of its Davis
Campus, UC Davis Extension from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013, in the
amounts of $16,720 and $33,440, for onsite training. File #130

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY — M. Corona:

20) Approved agreement with California State University, Chico, School Nursing
with the Public Health Division of Health & Human Services Agency for the
period of May 1, 2012 through April 30, 2015; and authorized the Interim
Director of Health and Human Services Agency to sign said agreement. File #130

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY — M. Corona:

21) Approved agreement with California State University, Dominguez Hills for
nursing clinical affiliation for the period of May 24, 2012 through May 23, 2015;
and authorized the Interim Director of Health and Human Services Agency to
sign said agreement. File #130

Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY — M. Corona:

22)

Approve contract with National Council on Crime and Delinquency for
structured decision making report services for the period of July 1, 2012
through June 30, 2013, in the amount of $12,000.

Item was pulled for discussion.

Supervisor Barrios stated that the wrong name, Kathy Flores, was on the
contract and the interim director's name needed to be put on the contract
instead.

Interim Director Maria Corona stated that she would make the correction.

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by Supervisor
Rivas, approved contract with National Council on Crime and Delinquency for
structured decision making report services for the period of July 1, 2012 through
June 30, 2013, in the amount of $12,000, with correction. (Unanimous) File #130

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY — M. Corona:

23)

Minutes

Make a finding that this is sole source procurement and an exception to the
competitive bid process based on the specialized nature of the software;
approve purchase of Envision Connect Decade Software System for
Mandated AB2286 Hazardous Materials Electronic Reporting with Decade
Software Company for the period of June 19, 2012 to November 30, 2012, in
the amount of $23,534 with an additional annual licensing fee of $3,780 for
subsequent years 2 and 3; and authorize the HHSA Interim Director to sign
contract.

Item was pulled for discussion.

Supervisor Barrios wanted to make sure Information Technology (IT) had
reviewed the software and given their expert advice.

Interim Health and Human Services Director Maria Corona replied that they
had and IT Manager Ray Espinosa had been involved.

Chairman De La Cruz opened the matter up for public comment.

Marty Richman felt that they should make IT the procuring department for all
these things.

County Administrative Officer Rich Inman stated that when the IT department
was formed, policy required approval of all software.

Management Analyst Riopel stated that it was also part of the purchasing
ordinance and manual and that IT was already involved in procurement.

Supervisor Barrios expressed that it was good to know that the County was
protected.

Upon motion made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by Supervisor
Botelho, made a finding that this is sole source procurement and an exception
to the competitive bid process based on the specialized nature of the software;
approved purchase of Envision Connect Decade Software System for Mandated
AB2286 Hazardous Materials Electronic Reporting with Decade Software
Company for the period of June 19, 2012 to November 30, 2012, in the amount
of $23,534 with an additional annual licensing fee of $3,780 for subsequent years
2 and 3; and authorized the HHSA Interim Director to sign contract.
(Unanimous) File #142.9

Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT — M. Rose:

24) Approved a transfer of expense from special department expense to Fixed
Assets, Equipment in the amount of $5,870; and recognized the set of forks for
the Landfill Forklift to be added to the schedule of fixed assets. File #142

INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT — M. Rose:
25) Approved contract with Philip Services Corporation for Household Hazardous
Waste and Small Quantity Generator (Business) Hazardous Waste for the period

of July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013, in an amount not to exceed $140,000. File
#142

INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT — M. Rose:

26) Approved payment from the Landfill Operating budget, in the amount of
$272,546.70 to Waste Connections, Inc. to cover changes in Law costs for Fiscal
year 2012. File #142

PROBATION DEPARTMENT — B. Cardall:
27) Approved contract with Hollister Youth Alliance for the period of July 1, 2012
through June 30, 2013, for an amount not to exceed $57,800. File #510

PROBATION DEPARTMENT — B. Cardall:
28) Approved contract with Paula Norton for the period of July 1, 2012 through June
30, 2013, for an amount not to exceed $18,500. File #510

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT — S. Wittry:

29) Approved Public Works Division budget adjustments in the amount of $74,969,
authorizing the increases in revenues and reductions and expenditures in FY
2011-12. (4/5 vote) File #105

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT — S. Wittry:

30) Approve contract with Ken Lewis Engineering & Surveying for engineering
and surveying services for the period of July 1, 2012 through June 30,
2015, in an amount not to exceed $18,000.

This item was pulled for discussion.

Supervisor Botelho noted that they had recently redone their fee structure and
asked how that related to this.

Public Works Administrator Steve Wittry stated that it matched well and that
Lewis provided a safety net to their staff for development purposes and map
reviews for development purposes.

Chairman De La Cruz asked about reimbursement for mileage.

Public Works Administrator Wittry explained that instead of paying Fed Ex to
deliver the maps, they pay him mileage to drive them over from Salinas.

There was no public comment.

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Botelho and seconded by Supervisor
Barrios, approved contract with Ken Lewis Engineering & Surveying for
engineering and surveying services for the period of July 1, 2012 through June
30, 2015, in an amount not to exceed $18,000. (Unanimous) File #105

Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT — S. Wittry:

31) Approve Amendment No. 1 to contract with SSA Landscape Architects, Inc.
for design services for the River Parkway/Regional Park Conceptual Master
Plan, increasing the contract by $16,182, for a total not to exceed amount of
$205,332.

This item was pulled for discussion.

Supervisor Botelho stated that it was early on in the project for increases
already. He asked if they came in with a low bid and were going to jack up the
prices with amendments. He stated they would really have to justify this to him
and that he wanted to send a message.

Public Works Administrator Steve Wittry explained that the primary reason for
the amendment was a request by the County for extra public meetings. He
added that they have an advisory steering committee and they wanted it to be a
very public process. He further explained that the contractor did not come to
them and that the steering committee had asked for this additionally. He noted
that they would have to take from somewhere else to cover this increase and
suggested perhaps shortening the trail. He added that the steering committee
was aware that by taking money out for design, it would come out of the
improvement pot. He stated that they felt extensive public outreach was
important.

Supervisor Botelho asked how he came up with that number.

Public Works Administrator Wittry stated that it was a not to exceed number
based on his printing costs, etc.

Supervisor Botelho asked if it could be done for less, noting that they may
have to economize.

Supervisor Barrios indicated that the magnitude of the project was big and
they planned for a lot of community input. She added that they wanted to make
sure the community designed it.

Supervisor Muenzer expressed concern with the timeline and asked in whose
lifetime it would be built.

Public Works Administrator Wittry replied probably your grandchildren’s.

Supervisor Muenzer felt it would be better to invest in Hospital Road, etc.

Public Works Administrator Wittry spoke of the timeline for Hospital Road
repairs.

Chairman De La Cruz opened the matter up for public comment.

Marvin Jones commented that additional meetings not only add costs for the
contract but for his staff that must also attend.

There being no further public comment, the Chair closed the public comment.

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by Supervisor
Rivas, approved Amendment No. 1 to contract with SSA Landscape Architects,
Inc. for design services for the River Parkway/Regional Park Conceptual Master
Plan, increasing the contract by $16,182, for a total not to exceed amount of
$205,332. (The motion passed 3 to 2 with Supervisors De La Cruz and Botelho
voting N0.) File #105

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT — S. Wittry:

32) Accepted all responsive bids in the bid summary report for the New Manager’s
Office/Apartment at San Benito County Migrant Farm Worker Camp project; and
approved contract with Hough Construction Co., Inc. as the lowest responsive,
responsible bidder in the amount of $262,380; and authorized the Public Works

Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



administrator to execute the contract upon receipt of documents as required per
the project specifications and authorized the Public Works Administrator to issue
change orders in an amount not to exceed $25,619.00. File #105.3

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT — S. Wittry:

33)

Approved contract with Nolte Associates, Inc. for engineering services for
preparation and specifications for the Anzar Road Bridge at San Juan Creek
project for the period of June 19, 2012 to June 30, 2016, in an amount not to
exceed $314,238. File #105

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT — S. Wittry:

34)

Minutes

Approve contract Amendment #1 with San Benito Tire, Inc., for countywide
vehicle maintenance and repair services for the period of July 1, 2012
through June 30, 2013.

This item was pulled for discussion.

Chairman De La Cruz stated that he had requested exploring a partnership
with the City of Hollister six months ago.

Public Works Administrator Steve Wittry explained that unfortunately they
were not able to do so as it did not make financial sense. He stated that it was
their recommendation to do a Request For Proposal process for the automobile
fleet service and this extension would allow for this. He noted that the extension
had a 30 day termination clause in it.

Chairman De La Cruz requested a 6 months extension instead of one year.
He understood that there was a 30 day termination clause but wanted to put a
time limit on it.

Supervisor Rivas stated that he was okay with six months.

Public Works Administrator Wittry anticipated bringing something back within
60 days.

Supervisor Barrios noted that there was a 30 day built in already.

Supervisor Muenzer stated that unless he was told differently he could
support 6 months.

Deputy County Counsel Shirley Murphy stated that under contract law both
parties needed to agree and the contract would expire before the next regularly
scheduled meeting.

The Chair opened the matter up for public comment.

Marty Richman did not understand how the City could afford to do
maintenance on their own vehicles without incorporating County vehicles. He felt
something was wrong and hoped they could get a detailed breakdown on why it
can’'t work.

There being no further public comment, the Chair closed the public hearing.

Public Works Administrator Wittry stated that the City did not have enough
staff to do their own vehicles and they were also looking at privatizing.

Upon motion made by Supervisor De La Cruz and seconded by Supervisor
Muenzer, approved contract Amendment #1 with San Benito Tire, Inc., for
countywide vehicle maintenance and repair services with modification of the
contract term to July 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 and authorized the
Public Works Administrator to sign the contract amendment upon approval by the
contractor. (Unanimous) File #105

Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT — S. Wittry:

35) Identified and added the Limekiln Road Bridge project to the Public Works-
Capital Improvement Projects budget unit as a new capital project; approved the
budget augmentation; and approved contract with Quincy Engineering, Inc. for
development of plans and specifications for Limekiln Road Bridge at Pescadero
Creek for the period of June 19, 2012 to June 30, 2016, in an amount not to
exceed $356,117. File #105

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT — S. Wittry:

36) Approve contract Amendment #1 with Bengal Engineering, LP, extending
the term for engineering, environmental and design services for Hospital
Road Bridge project for the period of June 30, 2012 through June 30, 2014.
Item was pulled for discussion.

Public Works Administrator Steve Wittry explained that with bridge projects
they get the lion’s share up front. He added that this contract only extends the
time frame and not dollars.

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Botelho and seconded by Supervisor
Muenzer, approved contract Amendment #1 with Bengal Engineering, LP,
extending the term for engineering, environmental and design services for
Hospital Road Bridge project for the period of June 30, 2012 through June 30,
2014. (Unanimous) File #105

The Board adjourned at 10:37 a.m. for a break and reconvened into regular
session at 10.45 a.m.

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT — S. Wittry:
37) Approved Amendment #1 with Kathy Wood & Associates, extending the contract
term to June 30, 2013. File #105

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT — S. Wittry:

38) Adopted Ordinance No. 897 adding Section 19.07.006 to Chapter 19.07
(“County Service Areas”) of Title 19 of the San Benito County Code relating to
the refund of County Service Area Fees. File: CSAs

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT — S. Wittry:
39) Approved an extension of the contract award date for the Stonegate Water
Supply Project, by 45 days, to August 7, 2012. File CSA 45

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT — S. Wittry:

40) Approved Change Orders #1 and #2 with Crosno Construction, Inc., in the
amount of $3,124.41 and $3,375.59, respectively, for the Stonegate Water Tank
Repair and Relining project; and authorized Public Works Administrator to sign
Change Orders #1 and #2. File CSA 31

SHERIFF'S OFFICE — D. Thompson:

41) Adopted Governing Body Resolution No. 2012-31 that authorizes positions
named to execute for and on behalf of the County for making application, filing
and obtaining state and federal assistance and funding under the State
Homeland Security Grant Program and Emergency Management Performance
Grant. File #110

Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



SHERIFF'S OFFICE — D. Thompson:

42)

Approved contract renewal with Emergency Vehicle Specialists, Inc. to provide
maintenance and repair for the San Benito County repeater sites for the period of
July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2014. File #110

SHERIFF'S OFFICE — D. Thompson:

43)

Approved appropriation and revenue increase in the Sheriff's Coroner budget in
the amount of $10,000. (4/5 vote) File #110

‘PUBLlC HEARINGS — 9:00 A.M. (Or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard)

AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER — R. Ross:

44)

Minutes

Hold a public hearing to hear objections, protests or requested changes or
corrections to the written report regarding the Mosquito and Disease
Control Assessment rate to be imposed by Mosquito and Disease Control
Assessment; adopt Resolution accepting the annual report for the
Mosquito and Disease Control Assessment and levying the rate of $10.08
per unit Mosquito and Disease Control Assessment for FY 2012/2013 based
on the Engineer’s report prepared by SCI Consultants.

Agricultural Commissioner Ron Ross gave a staff report noting that this year
the rate did not increase and would remain at $10.08 but perhaps there might be
an increase for 2013/14. He added that the Engineer's Report had been
prepared by SCI Consultants.

Supervisor Botelho asked if the money had been paid back on the loan.

Agricultural Commissioner Ross stated that yes it had.

Supervisor Muenzer asked what kind of rate increase they would be looking at
for the next year.

Agricultural Commissioner Ross explained that they would look at what was
needed and the number of parcels to see what they need. He indicated it would
be money to replace equipment and set aside for unexpected expenses.

Supervisor Barrios asked if they were to increase would it reduce net county
cost.

Agricultural Commissioner Ross replied that the net county cost was only
about $3,600 and that wouldn’t change.

Chairman De La Cruz opened the public hearing.

Marvin Jones spoke of the creative way ballots were counted and felt that a
2/3 vote should have been required. He suggested that since the loan had been
repaid they should reduce the rate by 2¢. He added that they could only
increase 30¢ next year which was 30%.

Marty Richman spoke of the mosquitoes that were in abandoned pools and
that it was not fair. He felt they should charge the property owner or put a lien on
their property.

There being no further public comment Chairman De La Cruz closed the
public hearing.

Supervisor Botelho asked if there was a procedure in place for abandoned
property and pools.

Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



Agricultural Commissioner Ross stated that California Health and Safety
allowed them to take action, but it was rarely done. He explained the process.
He indicated that the use of larvaecides and mosquito fish had cut back time
monitoring situations.

Supervisor Botelho suggested they work on reserves and contingencies the
next year.

Agricultural Commissioner Ross stated that last year at this time they had 12
birds that were infected and this year they have 98.

Chairman De La Cruz asked if the Board would entertain decreasing the rate
to $10.07.

Supervisor Barrios felt they should keep it the same.

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Muenzer and seconded by Supervisor
Barrios held a public hearing to hear objections, protests or requested changes
or corrections to the written report regarding the Mosquito and Disease Control
Assessment rate to be imposed by Mosquito and Disease Control Assessment;
adopted Resolution No. 2012-32 accepting the annual report for the Mosquito
and Disease Control Assessment and levying the rate of $10.08 per unit
Mosquito and Disease Control Assessment for FY 2012/2013 based on the
Engineer’s report prepared by SCI Consultants. (Unanimous) File #1.1

SITTING AS THE PUBLIC AUTHORITY FOR IN- HOME SUPPORTIVE SERVICES:

The Board adjourned as the Board of Supervisors and reconvened as the IHSS Public
Authority re:

IN-HOME SUPPORTIVE PUBLIC AUTHORITY — M. Corona:

45)  Approve Memorandum of Understanding between HHSA and the Public
Authority, for conducting In Home Supportive Services (IHSS) provider
background checks and orientations for the period of July 1, 2012 through
June 30, 2014, for the amount of $46,039, and authorize the Interim
Director to sign MOU.

Interim Health and Human Services Agency Director Maria Corona gave a
staff report.

Chairman De La Cruz opened the public hearing.

There being no public comment the Chair closed the public hearing.

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by
Supervisor Botelho, approved the Memorandum of Understanding between
HHSA and the Public Authority, for conducting In Home Supportive Services
(IHSS) provider background checks and orientations for the period of July 1,
2012 through June 30, 2014, for the amount of $46,039, and authorized the
Interim Director to sign MOU. (Unanimous) File #130.1

Interim HHSA Director Corona stated that she would be bringing back the
same MOU but with the county.

The Board adjourned as the IHSS Public Authority and reconvened as the San Benito
County Board of Supervisors re:

Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012




| REGULAR AGENDA:

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

46)

Minutes

Discussion and/or direction concerning Farmers’ Market fees. (Supervisor
Botelho)

Supervisor Botelho asked who was charged fees and why.

Environmental Health Specialist Darryl Wong spoke in regards to fees and the
difference between permit fees and annual fees, which they encouraged. He
spoke further about the differences in requirements based on what the vendor
was selling.

Hollister Farmers Market Manager Tammy Jackson spoke of how the Farmers
Market is growing and how they would like to grow more. She suggested the
possibility of pro-rated fees.

Supervisor Muenzer stated that pro-rated amounts had to recover the
county’s costs and he didn’t feel they needed to cover a year’'s fee for a five
month event.

Interim Health and Human Services Agency Director Maria Corona indicated
that they were going to be conducting a fee study and they could certainly look
into it.

Supervisor Barrios stated that there would be a lot to gain by attracting more
participants.

Environmental Health Specialist Wong explained that there was a break factor
when you get too many booths that affects them with too much competition in the
area.

Supervisor Rivas stated that he would like to see some type of revised fee
schedule for these types of events such as farmers markets.

Chairman De La Cruz indicated that he received a call a few weeks before
from a baked potato vendor that was told no.

Ms. Jackson stated that she had told them no. She explained that
competition was healthy but there was not enough revenue or attendance to
allow duplicate vendors. She further explained that the doubling up they had
done was organic strawberries and regular strawberries.

Chairman De La Cruz asked if they gave preference to locals.

Ms. Jackson replied no. She explained that when she started four years ago
she contacted all local vendors.

Chairman De La Cruz opened it up for public comment.

Marty Richman expressed appreciation on how well the farmers market was
run. He suggested a modified charge at a month at a time. He didn’t feel they
should require the same license for sample tasting as those who are cooking and
preparing food. He commented that Ms. Jackson showed good management
style.

There being no further public comment, the Chair closed the public comment
section.

Supervisor Botelho indicated that he was not deemphasizing public safety but
people at the farmers market know what the rules are. He suggested directing
staff to explore a pro-ration of the fee. He added looking at what would work for
special events, not just farmers market, but other events also. He felt it would
work better than what we have now.

Chairman De La Cruz stated that they would be expecting a report from
Supervisor Botelho late this year or early next year. File #156

Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



COUNTY ADMINISTRATION OFFICE — R. Inman:

47)

Progress report by Nancy Martin Executive Director/CEO of the San Benito
County Economic Development Corporation.

County Administrative Officer Rich Inman stated that he was requesting a
continuance as Nancy Martin was no longer with the EDC and the EDC had
asked for time to prepare a report.

Supervisor Barrios indicated that the City of Hollister through the
Redevelopment Agency had taken away funding and we needed to be
represented at some level for economic development. She stated that she had
attended the Monterey Bay Regional Economic Development Marketing Effort.
She explained that it was a stakeholder’s focus group and the whole idea behind
it was to partner regionally with the County of Monterey and the County of Santa
Cruz. She suggested that perhaps they could put the county EDC money
towards something like that. She further explained that it was a business council
that wanted to help us maintain our identity as a county and use our current
assets, co-exist with diversity, embrace growth, encourage locals to start
businesses and continue streamlining. She noted that there were findings that
show what will happen if we do nothing and she did not want to be a county that
does nothing. She encouraged the investment in economic development.

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Rivas and seconded by Supervisor
Botelho, moved to table the Economic Development Corporation progress report
indefinitely. (Unanimous) File #1105.1

COUNTY ADMINISTRATION OFFICE — R. Inman:

48)

Minutes

Discuss and provide direction on the formation of a Fire Protection
standing committee consisting of representative of the County, Cities and
fire protection agencies.

County Administrative Officer Rich Inman gave a background report.

Supervisor Rivas stated it was the topic of discussion at the
Intergovernmental Committee meeting.

Supervisor Muenzer expressed concern that they didn’t have the fire contract
itself before them.

CAO Inman explained that Management Analyst Margie Riopel was currently
working on it. He added that they would have fire service on July 1% but may not
have a contract before then.

Supervisor Muenzer thought the committee was a great idea and felt it should
be a standing committee. He added that he had been approached by members
of the community but didn’t know if they should bring them in now.

Chairman De La Cruz noted that with a standing committee the public can
come to the meetings and share ideas.

Supervisor Muenzer explained that they wanted to be on the committee.

Supervisor Botelho stated that this was a complex issue and we were a small
county with limited resources and we have to work together. He noted the
suggestion that a technical advisory committee with this would be good to have.

Supervisor Barrios indicated that perhaps a discussion later on for a special
district.

Chairman De La Cruz called for public comment and there was none. He
then asked for volunteers for the committee.

Supervisor Botelho expressed a desire to volunteer.

Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



Supervisor Muenzer noted that Supervisor Botelho and he continued to meet
and he too would like to volunteer.

Supervisor Barrios agreed.

Supervisor Rivas agreed as well. He added that he hoped there would be
reports to the full Board as well.

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by Supervisor
Rivas created a Fire Protection Standing Committee and appointed Supervisors
Botelho and Muenzer to the Fire Protection Committee and directed that a Fire
Protection Committee report be on the agenda of the last board meeting of each
month. (Unanimous) File #60

Chairman De La Cruz noted that it would be a standing committee and would
be subject to the Brown Act.

COUNTY ADMINISTRATION OFFICE — R. Inman:

49)

Minutes

Discussion and/or direction concerning county budget.

County Administrative Officer Rich Inman indicated that Sheriff Thompson
would like to speak.

Sheriff Darren Thompson explained that currently there were layoff notices on
9 people in his agency, 3 correctional officers and 6 patrol deputies, which would
take effect July 1st. He asked the Board to extend the layoff dates for 2 of the
patrol deputies to allow him time to pursue ideas that they came up with in a
closed meeting with his staff. He asked that the layoff date be extended from
July 1% to August 1% for 2 deputies.

Supervisor Botelho stated that he voted against the layoff notices in the
beginning and felt they should go through the budget first and scrutinize each
unit. He felt that some departments and services are more important than
others. He stated that he personally did not object to extending the layoff notices
till the end of the budget period.

Supervisor Rivas asked what type of impact this would have to extend the
layoff notices.

CAO Inman stated that the Sheriff had ideas on how to pay for these. He
agreed with Supervisor Botelho that they needed to have the complete picture
and that's what they will be starting on the 23™. He indicated that the impact
would be that it would only be an 11 months savings instead of 12 if the Sheriff's
idea doesn’t work out.

Supervisor Muenzer had no problem with extending the layoff notice to
August 1%,

Supervisor Barrios suggested for public safety, District Attorney’s office and
probation that are especially hard hit with these budget cuts, that we extend them
all to August 1% She stated that there was still so much up in the air and they
did not have numbers and the community needed to be protected. She noted
mandates. She continued by reporting out as the Ad Hoc Budget Committee.
She stated that when she made a motion to move forward with the layoffs and
had a 3 to 2 vote, with the idea that the DA had brought forward a retirement and
resignation and those DA people on that list should not have been noticed and
they were. She stated that it was very disappointing to her that they were noticed
and shouldn’t have been. Supervisor Barrios stated that she wanted to rescind
those notices.

Management Analyst Jacki Credico explained the time limitations with the
August 1% date and recommended August 15" for the layoff date.

Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



Minutes

Supervisor Rivas agreed with Supervisor Barrios and felt they should extend
all notices for the Sheriff’'s Office, Probation and District Attorney.

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Rivas and seconded by Supervisor
Barrios to extend layoff notices to August 15" for the Sheriffs Department,
District Attorney’s Office and Probation.

Supervisor Muenzer asked if extended, are they ready to take additional cuts
if it doesn’t work out.

District Attorney Candace Hooper stated that she had some wiggle room and
would be bringing a bad check fee increase and a restitution program to the
board but did not know how much revenue it would create.

Supervisor Muenzer stated that he assumed the Chief Probation Officer would
be okay with this.

Chairman De La Cruz spoke to Department Heads and said the burden was
on them to inform their employees if on December 31 new funding ideas do not
materialize.

Supervisor Barrios indicated that she had asked to rescind the notice that
went out in error to the OAI because the DA had brought in the resignation and
retirement. She wanted to make sure that she directed staff to rescind that
notice.

DA Hooper stated that initially the layoff report was for an OA 1l and 2 deputy
district attorneys. She reminded that was what it would take to get to the budget
cuts but not what she was recommending. She indicated that in the interim she
had a deputy resign and a legal secretary retire. She added that the list was
supposed to be an OA | and either way the retirement of the legal secretary took
the place of the OA | or OA llI.

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by Supervisor
Botelho moved to rescind the notice that went out in error to the OA I in the
District Attorney’s Office.

Chairman De La Cruz polled the Board on the possibility of skipping the
August 7, 2012 Board of Supervisors meeting due to Budget Hearings.

Supervisor Rivas was in agreement.

Supervisor Barrios asked if they needed that meeting to carry out the
decisions made with the August 15" deadline they just gave.

CAO Inman noted that budget hearings were open for 10 days and noted that
the full ten days may be needed. He stated that after the hearings it takes a
while to do all the compilations and they would not be ready by August 7.

Supervisor Rivas suggested rescheduling the meeting for August 14™.

All Supervisors found the rescheduling acceptable.

Chairman De La Cruz directed that the August 7, 2012 Board meeting be
rescheduled for August 14, 2012.

Agricultural Commissioner Ron Ross stated that he had met with the Budget
Committee and they suggested he come to speak to the Board about being
asked to reduce net county cost to $105,000. He spoke in regards to the Wildlife
Services and explained what they do. He noted that their contract with the
United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) is $73,000 and they asked them
to revisit the contract and they reduced it to $56,000 for one week service away
from the county. He explained that they were currently coming in $47,000 over
budget even with the decrease in the contract. He noted that Wildlife Services is
eligible for partial reimbursement and they could count on about 40% so for the

Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



$56,000 contract the next year they would expect $22,000 reimbursement. He
added that they would expend the money in 2012/13 and be reimbursed in
2013/14.

Supervisor Muenzer reported that he had received several calls, letters and
emails supporting Wildlife Services. He felt it was a health and safety issue. He
asked if they were responsible for work within the city limits.

Agricultural Commissioner Ross stated that Wildlife Services only takes care
of non-domestic animals and the City does domestic with the City funding $5,000
a year. He added that they receive $4,000 to $5,000 a year from federal grazing
fees. He stated that it was needed and was a health and safety issue.

Supervisor Botelho stated that Wildlife Services had been successful but
these are part of the services they would not be able to continue. He felt they
should be looking at contracting with Animal Services.

Agricultural Commissioner Ross spoke of the mountain lion issues and timing
of responses.

CAO Inman stated that the matter could be addressed in budget hearings.

Chairman De La Cruz opened public comment.

SEIU Local 521 Internal Organizer Henry Soria spoke of private sector
employees doing the work of public sector employees, and in particular the
Precision Company contract at the Planning Department. He commented that he
would hate to see it go to PERS.

Marty Richman spoke of the problem with OPEB.

There being no further public comment, the Chair closed the public comment
section.

County Counsel Matt Granger stated that Precision was an independent
contractor and Cal PERS does not have to be deducted as independent
contractors are not subject to Cal PERS deductions.

The Board adjourned to lunch at 12:25 p.m. and reconvened into regular
session at 1:30 p.m.

COUNTY AUDITOR/ASSESSOR/TREASURER/DISTRICT ATTORNEY:

50)

Adopt Resolution accepting the completed and signed Elected Officials
voluntary and irrevocable waivers.

Clerk-Auditor-Recorder Joe Paul Gonzalez stated that as individuals holding
elected offices they were opting to pay the full 7% PERS and forfeiting all of their
car allowance for the fiscal year.

The supervisors thanked them.

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Botelho and seconded by Supervisor
Muenzer adopted Resolution No. 2012-33 accepting the completed and
signed Elected Officials voluntary and irrevocable waivers. (Unanimous) File #630

PLANNING DEPARTMENT — G. Armstrong:

51)

Minutes

Approve contract with Benchmark Resources to prepare the Nash Road
Quarry Environmental Impact Report, in an amount not to exceed $343,672;
and authorize the Planning Director to approve minor contract
amendments, authorizing additional work within the 10% contract
contingency amount not to exceed $34,367.

Planning Director Gary Armstrong gave a staff report.

Supervisor Barrios thanked him for moving forward with the matter.

Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



There was no public comment.

Chairman De La Cruz hoped that there would be resolution.

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by Supervisor
Muenzer, approved contract with Benchmark Resources to prepare the Nash
Road Quarry Environmental Impact Report, in an amount not to exceed
$343,672; and authorized the Planning Director to approve minor contract
amendments, authorizing additional work within the 10% contract contingency
amount not to exceed $34,367. (Unanimous) File #790

PLANNING DEPARTMENT — G. Armstrong:
52) Receive report on Permit Activity in the Planning & Building Department.

Planning Director Gary Armstrong gave a staff report and brief overview. File
#790

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT — S. Wittry:
53) Approve budget adjustment for CSA 50 (Dunneville Estates) increasing
revenue and expenses in the amount of $4,500. (4/5 vote)
Public Works Administrator Steve Wittry gave a staff report.
Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by Supervisor
Botelho approved budget adjustment for CSA 50 (Dunneville Estates) increasing
revenue and expenses in the amount of $4,500. (Unanimous) File CSA #50

SHERIFF'S OFFICE — D. Thompson:

54) Read title of ordinance for the record: “An Ordinance of the County of San
Benito to Repeal and Replace Ordinance No. 711 providing for the
preparation, direction and coordination of Emergency Services”; accept
the introduction of the ordinance, waive further reading of the ordinance;
and continue to July 10, 2012 for adoption of said ordinance.

Emergency Services Manager James Clark explained the proposed changes
to the old ordinance.

Supervisor Barrios asked if there was a command order in the event of a
disaster.

ES Manager Clark stated that one would be coming next once the ordinance
was adopted.

Chairman De La Cruz opened the matter up for public comment.

Marty Richman explained that he had a lot of experience in this area with his
military service and his experience was that there was reluctance to drag in all
the top level people and show them the equipment and where they go.

ES Manager Clark stated that they had conducted a training drill in February.

There being no further comment public comment was closed.

Supervisor Muenzer felt the supervisors need to know what their positions
were so they didn't get in the way. He suggested a walk through to show them
what the experts were doing.

ES Manager Clark stated that they could do a 30 minute review on a Tuesday
Board meeting date.

Chairman De La Cruz asked Mr. Clark to set it up with the Clerk of the Board.

Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Rivas and seconded by Supervisor
Barrios, read title of ordinance for the record: “An Ordinance of the County of
San Benito to Repeal and Replace Ordinance No. 711 providing for the
preparation, direction and coordination of Emergency Services”; accepted the

Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



Minutes

introduction of the ordinance, waived further reading of the ordinance; and

continued to July 10, 2012 for adoption of said ordinance. (Unanimous) File
#75.5

R S S I b b b b b S Ik S

The vote of each member of the Board of Supervisors upon each matter at
the foregoing meeting, unless otherwise stated, was as follows:

AYES: SUPERVISORS: De La Cruz, Botelho, Rivas, Muenzer, Barrios
NOES: SUPERVISORS: None
ABSENT: SUPERVISORS: None

There being no further business the Board adjourned at 1:57 p.m. to July 10,
2012 at 9:00 a.m.

JAIME DE LA CRUZ, CHAIR
San Benito County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:
Denise R. Thome, Clerk of the Board

Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 June 19, 2012



	County Administration Building – Board of Supervisors Chambers, 481 Fourth Street, Hollister, California
	REGULAR MEETING
	JUNE 19, 2012
	ACTION MINUTES
	SITTING AS THE PUBLIC AUTHORITY FOR IN- HOME SUPPORTIVE SERVICES:



